
AGENDA 
Thursday, July 17, 2025 

1:00pm – 3:00pm 
City Hall 

1 Dr Carlton B Goodlett Pl, Room 305 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

Members of the Public who are unable to attend the meeting in person, but would like to provide public comment or 
watch the meeting can do so remotely through the following zoom information: 

Join Zoom Meeting 
• https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85995347229?pwd=38iIvvY45pZPWlbvhYXxAYfSXBULU3.1
• Meeting ID: 859 9534 7229
• Passcode: 071958

Dial by your location 
• +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
• Meeting ID: 859 9534 7229
• Passcode: 071958
• Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSP42G15s

Note: Each member of the public will be allotted no more than 2 minutes to speak on each item. 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85995347229?pwd=38iIvvY45pZPWlbvhYXxAYfSXBULU3.1
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSP42G15s


1. Call to Order and Introductions.

2. Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement (discussion only).

3. Public Comment on Any Item Listed Below as for “Discussion Only.”  (NOTE: public comment on items listed
as “possible action” will occur during that agenda’s time).

4. Review and Adoption of Meeting Minutes of July 17, 2025 Council Meeting (discussion & possible action).

5. Staff Report on Activities of the Reentry Council and its Subcommittees (discussion only).
a. Staff Updates
b. Subcommittee Updates

1) Women 1st  Subcommittee
2) Legislation, Policy, and Practices Subcommittee
3) Direct Action Subcommittee

6. Welcome New Mayoral Appointees to the Reentry Council (discussion only).

7. Presentation: Resolution on Wage Parity by Cedric Akbar (discussion & possible action).

8. Commission Streamlining Task Force Recommendations (discussion & possible action).

9. Regular Update on Activities of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council, Sentencing Commission,
Collaborative Courts, and Community Corrections Partnership, STARR, Safety and Justice Challenge (discussion
only).

10. Racial Equity Work Updates – Departments are welcome to provide a Racial Equity Update for their Department
(discussion only).

11. Council Members’ Comments, questions and Requests for Future Agenda Items (discussion only).

12. Public Comment on any item on today’s agenda, or on other business within the purview of the Reentry Council
(discussion only).

13. Adjournment.

2



SUBMITTING WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENT TO THE REENTRY COUNCIL  
Persons who are unable to attend the public meeting may submit to the Reentry Council, by the time the proceedings 
begin, written comments regarding the subject of the meeting.  These comments will be made a part of the official public 
record, and brought to the attention of the Reentry Council.  Written comments should be submitted to: Victoria 
Westbrook, Interim Reentry Policy Planner, Adult Probation Department, 880 Bryant Street, Room 200, San Francisco, 
CA 94103, or via email: reentry.council@sfgov.org.  

MEETING MATERIALS  
Copies of agendas, minutes, and explanatory documents are available through the Reentry Council’s website at 
http://sfreentry.com or by calling Victoria Westbrook at (415) 930-2202 during normal business hours.  The material can 
be FAXed or mailed to you upon request. 

ACCOMMODATIONS 
To obtain a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the 
meeting, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at least two business days 
before the meeting.  

TRANSLATION  
Interpreters for languages other than English are available on request. Sign language interpreters are also available on 
request. For either accommodation, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at 
least two business days before the meeting. 

CHEMICAL SENSITIVITIES 
To assist the City in its efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical 
sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to 
various chemical based products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals. 

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative 
Code) 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils 
and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations 
are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. Copies of the Sunshine 
Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Public Library, and on the City's 
web site at: www.sfgov.org/sunshine.  

FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE OR TO REPORT A 
VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE, CONTACT THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE TASK FORCE: 
Administrator 
Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
City Hall, Room 244 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,  
San Francisco, CA 94102-4683.  
Telephone: (415) 554-7724 
Fax: (415) 554-5163 
E-Mail: soft@sfgov.org

CELL PHONES 
The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this 
meeting. Please be advised that the Co-Chairs may order the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible 
for the ringing or use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices. 

3

mailto:veronica.martinez@sfgov.org
http://sfreentry.com/
http://www.sfgov.org/sunshine


LOBBYIST ORDINANCE 

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by 
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance (SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code sections 2.100-2.160) to register and 
report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the Ethics Commission at 30 
Van Ness Avenue, Suite 3900, San Francisco CA 94102, telephone (415) 581-2300, FAX (415) 581-2317, and web site 
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/ 

4

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/


DRAFT Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, July 17, 2025 

1:00pm – 3:00pm 
City Hall 

1 Dr Carlton B Goodlett Pl, Room 305 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

 
Members of the Public who are unable to attend the meeting in person, but would like to provide public comment or 
watch the meeting can do so remotely through the following zoom information: 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 

• https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81716545397?pwd=U0FocWltOWMwZ2FqVU9kN082bDlZdz09 
• Meeting ID: 817 1654 5397 
• Passcode: 797944 

 
Dial by your location 

• +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
• Meeting ID: 817 1654 5397 
• Passcode: 797944 
• Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSP42G15s 

 
 
 
 
 
Note: Each member of the public will be allotted no more than 2 minutes to speak on each item.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81716545397?pwd=U0FocWltOWMwZ2FqVU9kN082bDlZdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSP42G15s


 
Members Present: 
Chauncey Robinson for Chief Cristel Tullock (SFAPD), Alissa Riker for Paul Miyamoto (SFSO), Tara Agnese 
for Brooke Jenkins (DAT), Carolyn Goosen for Manohar Raju (PDA), Teresa Ick (DPH), Steven Betz – Designee 
(Mayor’s Office) Melanie Kushner (Superior Court), Karen Roye (DCSS), David McCahon (HSA), Lorenzo Juan 
Castaneda (BOS Appointee), Joanna Pulido (BOS Appointee); David Mauroff (BOS Appointee – Pretrial 
Diversion Services) Deedra Jackson (DCYF), Gabriel Calvillo (Juvenile Probation); Billey Hoang Le (BOS 
Appointee); Marion Sanders(HSH), Bryan Dahl – Supervisor Dorsey (BOS);  
 
Members Absent: 
Antonio Napolean (Mayoral Appointee), Allen Harvin (Mayoral Appointee), Tatiana Lewis (Mayoral Appointee), 
Iowayna Pena (OEWD); Paul Yep (SFPD), Phillip Rodriguez (State Parole), Anthony Partee (BOS Appointee), 
Kevin Thomas (US Probation) 

 
1. Call to Order and Introductions.  

Steven Betz of the Mayor’s Office called the meeting to order. He thanked Council members and members of the 
interested public for attending the meeting. He acknowledged the five Co-Chairs:  

● Cristel Tullock, Chief of Adult Probation 
● Manohar Raju, Public Defender 
● Brooke Jenkins, District Attorney 
● Paul Miyamoto, Sheriff 
● Mayor Daniel Lurie' Office 
Alek Hartwick completed Reentry Council Roll Call and indicated there was quorum. 

2. Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement (discussion only).    
Chief Tullock read the Raymatush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement. 

 
3. Public Comment on Any Item Listed Below as for “Discussion Only.”  (NOTE: public comment on items listed 

as “possible action” will occur during that agenda’s time).  
There was no Public Comment 
 

4. Review and Adoption of Meeting Minutes of July 17, 2025, Council Meeting (discussion & possible action).  
Steven Betz asked the Council for a motion to adopt the minutes.  
Tara Agnese made the motion to adopt the minutes. 
Alissa Riker seconded the motion. 
Alek Hartwick conducted a roll call vote. The motion carried. 
The Meeting Minutes of July 17, 2025, Council Meeting were adopted. 
 

5. Staff Report on Activities of the Reentry Council and its Subcommittees (discussion only).    
a. Staff Updates 
b. Subcommittee Updates 

1) Women 1st  Subcommittee 
2) Legislation, Policy, and Practices Subcommittee 
3) Direct Action Subcommittee 

 
Victoria Westbrook provided updates on the Reentry Council Subcommittee’s which included updates on the 
State Legislative Committee Proposals the Reentry Council voted to support. Three of the bills were approved for 
support and of those two are on the Governor’s desk for signature:  

• AB 247 - Incarcerated Individual Hand Crew Members: Wages. 
• AB 248 - County Jails: Wages 

 
 

6



 
The Women’s First Subcommittee met on June 9th, 2025, and developed the panels that were planned for the 
Annual Reentry Conference that has since been canceled unfortunately. Victoria provided updates on the Direct 
Action Subcommittee and future events including the Overdose Prevent day which will took place at the end of 
August; And the Fifth Annual Recovery Day on September 12th at Boeddeker Park; CASC End of the Year 
Celebration (TBD); And the Second Annual Overdose Prevention Summit at the SF Main Public Library on 
Thursday, January 30th 9:15am - 4pm. 

 
6. Presentation: AI For Reentry: Supporting Stability and Tracking Impact by Danny Yoon and John Min, Dignifi 

(discussion only). 
 
This presentation was an introduction to the work of Dignifi and their work on “Roadmap” a web and mobile app 
that facilitates resource navigation from day one and maps reentrant journey while providing a centralized hub of 
verified services, including housing, employment, healthcare, legal aid, and more. Danny Yoon and John Min’s 
summarized that despite billions of dollars invested annually in reentry, the process remains a “black box” with 
little accountability or measurable outcomes, often leaving individuals with minimal guidance and overwhelming 
barriers to housing, employment, identification, and basic stability. Dignifi responds to this gap by building an 
interconnected ecosystem that serves three groups: reentrants, service providers, and policymakers. For reentrants, 
it offers an AI-guided Reentry Navigator that delivers personalized roadmaps and resource guidance, helping 
users take actionable steps while rating and reviewing services to maintain real-time accuracy. For service 
providers, Dignifi equips them with digital tools to streamline case management, track progress, and improve 
reporting and compliance. At the policy level, the platform’s Compass system aggregates ground-level usage data 
to reveal true service performance, enabling evidence-based funding decisions and transparent evaluation of 
reentry outcomes. Rooted in dignity and lived experience, Dignifi aims not only to improve service access but to 
reshape how reentry success is defined, measured, and funded—shifting the system from reactive and opaque to 
accountable, data-driven, and human-centered. 
 

7. Farewell 2023 Mayoral Appointees and Recruitment Process for New 2025 Mayoral Appointees (discussion 
only). 
 
Steven Betz thanked the expiring term appointees for the valuable contributions and participations during the 
tenure as manorial appointees to the Reentry Council. 

 
8. Prop 47 Cohort 5 Application Update by Kellee Hom, Department of Public Health (discussion only). 

 
Kellee Hom provided an update on the Prop 47 Cohort 5 grant which expands and augments the expiring Cohort 3 
Prop 47 program: Supporting Treatment & Reducing Recidivism (STARR) by focusing specifically on people 
experiencing homelessness and adding step-down transitional housing to a continuum of SUD treatment options 
that includes withdrawal management and residential treatment. 

 
 

9. Regular Update on Activities of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council, Sentencing Commission, 
Collaborative Courts, and Community Corrections Partnership, STARR, Safety and Justice Challenge (discussion 
only). 
 
Theresa Ick from the Department of Public Health provided an update on the Supporting Treatment and Reducing 
Recidivism (STARR) grant program which continues to operate at capacity with residential substance abuse beds, 
continues to welcome referrals and is onboarding new health worker soon as well.  
 
Patty Martinez from the Sherriff’s Office provided an update on the Safety Justice Challenge grant which 
included an RFP for individuals transitioning from incarceration to support Bridge Housing and Peer Support 
Specialists. Additional updates were on the Safety and Justice Challenge Fellows and their research project to 
reduce barriers impacting justice involved people entering peer navigation.  
 

7



 
Karen Roye from Child Support Services provided an update from the most recent Sentencing Commission 
Meeting which took place on Thursday, June 25th 2025.  
 
Melanie Kushner provided an update for the Superior Court which included an extension of a grant that aims to 
expand the eligibility of mental health diversion. 
 

10. Racial Equity Work Updates –Departments are welcome to provide a Racial Equity Update for their Department 
(discussion only). 

 
11. Council Members’ Comments, questions and Requests for Future Agenda Items (discussion only). 

 
12. Public Comment on any item on today’s agenda, or on other business within the purview of the Reentry Council 

(discussion only). 
 
Anjru, Micare, Annika and Milana de Leo provided public comment on the tragic passing of their father Melvin 
Bulauan, a resident at 111 Taylor St. which is operated in San Francisco by GEO Group, a federal contractor. 
Supervisor Bilal Mahmood has called for a hearing to discuss the events and operations of 111 Taylor St. that will 
take place on November 6th. 

13. Adjournment.  
 

Tara Agnese made the motion to adjourn. 
Alissa Ricker seconded the motion. 
Alek Hartwick conducted a roll call vote.  
The motion carried 
Meeting Adjourned   

8



 
SUBMITTING WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENT TO THE REENTRY COUNCIL  
Persons who are unable to attend the public meeting may submit to the Reentry Council, by the time the proceedings 
begin, written comments regarding the subject of the meeting.  These comments will be made a part of the official public 
record, and brought to the attention of the Reentry Council.  Written comments should be submitted to: Victoria 
Westbrook, Interim Reentry Policy Planner, Adult Probation Department, 880 Bryant Street, Room 200, San Francisco, 
CA 94103, or via email: reentry.council@sfgov.org.  

 
MEETING MATERIALS  
Copies of agendas, minutes, and explanatory documents are available through the Reentry Council’s website at 
http://sfreentry.com or by calling Victoria Westbrook at (415) 930-2202 during normal business hours.  The material can 
be FAXed or mailed to you upon request. 
 
ACCOMMODATIONS  
To obtain a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the 
meeting, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at least two business days 
before the meeting.  
 
TRANSLATION  
Interpreters for languages other than English are available on request. Sign language interpreters are also available on 
request. For either accommodation, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at 
least two business days before the meeting. 
 
CHEMICAL SENSITIVITIES 
To assist the City in its efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical 
sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to 
various chemical based products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals. 
 
KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative 
Code) 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils 
and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations 
are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. Copies of the Sunshine 
Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Public Library, and on the City's 
web site at: www.sfgov.org/sunshine.  
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE OR TO REPORT A 
VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE, CONTACT THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE TASK FORCE: 
Administrator 
Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
City Hall, Room 244 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,  
San Francisco, CA 94102-4683.  
Telephone: (415) 554-7724 
Fax: (415) 554-5163 
E-Mail: soft@sfgov.org   
 
CELL PHONES 
The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this 
meeting. Please be advised that the Co-Chairs may order the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible 
for the ringing or use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices. 
 
 
 

9

mailto:veronica.martinez@sfgov.org
http://sfreentry.com/
http://www.sfgov.org/sunshine


LOBBYIST ORDINANCE 
 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by 
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance (SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code sections 2.100-2.160) to register and 
report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the Ethics Commission at 30 
Van Ness Avenue, Suite 3900, San Francisco CA 94102, telephone (415) 581-2300, FAX (415) 581-2317, and web site 
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/ 

10

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/


‭RESOLUTION ON THE MURDER OF AN URBAN ALCHEMY EMPLOYEE AND THE‬
‭NEED FOR ENHANCED SUPPORT, SAFETY, AND PAY EQUITY FOR FRONTLINE‬

‭WORKERS IN SAN FRANCISCO‬

‭Principal Author:‬‭Cedric Akbar‬
‭Co-sponsors:‬‭Lanier Coles, Lily Ho‬

‭WHEREAS‬‭, the City and County of San Francisco (“the‬‭City”) relies extensively on‬
‭community-based nonprofit organizations and contractors to deliver critical frontline‬
‭services—including housing support, mental health care, substance use treatment, and‬
‭homelessness outreach—on behalf of the City; and nonprofit and contract workers,‬
‭including those employed by organizations like Urban Alchemy and the Homeless‬
‭Outreach Team (HOT), provide life-saving services under difficult and dangerous‬
‭conditions, often engaging directly with individuals experiencing severe trauma,‬
‭addiction, and mental illness on San Francisco’s streets; and‬

‭WHEREAS‬‭, these workers are not sworn peace officers,‬‭but rather individuals with lived‬
‭experience and training in trauma-informed care, who serve with compassion and‬
‭commitment to public safety and community healing; and frontline outreach workers are‬
‭increasingly subjected to dangerous and volatile situations, including the tragic killing of‬
‭Joey Alexander, an Urban Alchemy employee, on September 26, 2025, in front of the‬
‭San Francisco Main Library, as well as reported shootings near treatment centers, and‬
‭threats to HOT Team members and others tasked with addressing open-air drug use‬
‭and crisis response; and‬

‭WHEREAS‬‭, nonprofit workers, who are approximately‬‭75% Black, Indigenous, and‬
‭People of Color (BIPOC), are often paid significantly less than City employees doing‬
‭comparable work—‬‭an SEIU Local 1021 study in 2021 found‬‭nonprofit workers‬
‭earned, on average, 45% less than City employees in equivalent positions‬‭; and‬
‭this wage disparity, combined with exposure to trauma and danger, leads to high‬
‭turnover, burnout, recruitment challenges, and an overall weakening of the City’s ability‬
‭to deliver consistent and effective services to vulnerable populations; and‬

‭WHEREAS‬‭, many nonprofit and contract workers cannot‬‭afford to live in the city they‬
‭serve, threatening long-term workforce sustainability and community trust; and‬

‭WHEREAS‬‭, violence against frontline workers is not‬‭only unacceptable but represents‬
‭an attack on San Francisco’s values of equity, dignity, and community-led public safety;‬
‭now, therefore, be it‬

‭PROPOUNDED BY: Akbar‬
‭ADOPTED:‬
‭RESOLUTION NO. 2025-10-Frontline Workers‬

‭DRAFT‬

11



‭RESOLVED, That the San Francisco Democratic Central Committee (SFDCC):‬
‭1.‬ ‭Extends its deepest condolences‬‭to the family, friends, and colleagues of‬

‭the Urban Alchemy employee who was tragically murdered while serving the‬
‭public, and to all victims of violence while working to heal and protect San‬
‭Francisco’s communities;‬

‭2.‬ ‭Condemns all violence‬‭against nonprofit and frontline‬‭workers, and‬
‭recognizes their bravery and essential role in addressing the City’s‬
‭homelessness, addiction, and mental health crises;‬

‭3.‬ ‭Calls for a full and transparent investigation‬‭into‬‭the conditions that‬
‭allowed such acts of violence to occur, including the failure to enforce laws‬
‭related to illegal weapons possession and open-air drug use, and demands‬
‭justice for the victims and accountability for those responsible;‬

‭4.‬ ‭Demands immediate investments‬‭in safety protections,‬‭trauma-informed‬
‭training, and mental health support for all frontline workers, including those‬
‭with Urban Alchemy, the HOT Team, and other contracted service providers;‬

‭5.‬ ‭Urges the City and County of San Francisco‬‭to close‬‭the pay gap between‬
‭City workers and nonprofit employees by increasing contract funding so that‬
‭nonprofit staff can receive equitable compensation, benefits, and protections;‬

‭6.‬ ‭Calls on the City‬‭to invest in long-term solutions‬‭addressing the root causes‬
‭of street-level violence—such as addiction, untreated trauma, and systemic‬
‭disinvestment in low-income and BIPOC communities;‬

‭7.‬ ‭Affirms the SFDCC’s ongoing commitment‬‭to ensuring‬‭dignity, safety, and‬
‭fair pay for all workers who serve on the frontlines of San Francisco’s public‬
‭health and social service systems.‬

‭BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED‬‭, That copies of this resolution‬‭shall be transmitted to the‬
‭Office of the Mayor, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors, and the Controller’s‬
‭Office, with an urgent call for immediate action.‬

‭PROPOUNDED BY: Akbar‬
‭ADOPTED:‬
‭RESOLUTION NO. 2025-10-Frontline Workers‬

‭DRAFT‬

12



Reentry Council
  City and County of San Francisco 

Reentry Council – Commission Streamlining Task Force Recommendations 
(MEMO) 
To: San Francisco Reentry Council Members 
Subject: Options under Commission Streamlining Task Force Recommendations 

Background 

In November 2024, San Francisco voters approved Proposition E, creating the Commission Streamlining 
Task Force to review all city boards and commissions and recommend modifications (keep, combine, or 
eliminate). The Task Force’s final report is due by February 1, 2026; bodies established by ordinance 
(like the Reentry Council) would be changed via Board of Supervisors ordinance in 2026. The Reentry 
Council is currently established by city ordinance (Admin. Code §5.1-1). Initially, Task Force staff 
noted the Council is set to sunset in 2029 and recommended the council reduce its membership of city 
departments to 15. However, at its September 3, 2025, meeting, the Task Force voted unanimously to 
eliminate the Council’s ordinance, reasoning that “because members are primarily department staff or 
their designees, the body does not need to be codified” and could operate as a passive meeting body 
instead. 

This memo outlines structural options for the future of the San Francisco Reentry Council in response to 
the Commission Streamlining Task Force’s recommendations. These options include: (1) appealing the 
Task Force’s recommendation and remaining a codified formal body, or (2) accepting the 
recommendation and becoming a non-codified passive meeting body with enhanced voluntary 
governance. 

Option 1: Convert to a Passive Meeting Body 

Under this option, the Reentry Council would cease to exist as a formal commission. Instead, its 
members (agency staff and community representatives) would meet informally as needed under 
department leadership. San Francisco defines passive meeting bodies (PMBs) as groups not established 
by law and largely exempt from normal open-meeting rules. For example, a PMB (and its 
subcommittees) may meet in hybrid or virtual format, is only required to provide notice of meetings 
(without a fixed agenda deadline), and is not required to allow public comment. Meetings remain open 
to the public and accessible, but they are not required to take place in designated public spaces or follow 
strict posting rules. 

Pros: Reduced bureaucracy and greater flexibility. As a PMB, the group would avoid formal Brown Act 
procedures (no mandatory agendas or minutes), making it much easier for staff to convene meetings on 
short notice. A passive structure can quickly address urgent issues and adjust its focus as needed, 
without waiting for a scheduled public meeting.  Meetings could also be held virtually and during 
evening hours to encourage broader participation, especially from community stakeholders who may 
have less in-person availability during normal business hours. 

13



Cons: Lower transparency and public input. Without formal status, meetings would not automatically 
include published agendas or allow public testimony, which could limit community oversight. Residents 
and formerly incarcerated stakeholders might have fewer opportunities to participate. Also, the body 
would lack a legal charter: seats reserved by ordinance (for example, seats for formerly incarcerated 
members) would no longer be guaranteed, and the group’s existence would depend on departmental 
priorities rather than law. 

Supplemental Approach: If the Council transitions to a passive body, formally linking it to the CCP 
provides an alternate way to sustain its influence. For instance, the Council could appoint delegates to 
CCP or the CCP could invite Council leadership to its executive meetings. This hybrid approach would 
ensure that if the Council’s role is reduced, its priorities still enter the realignment planning process via 
the CCP framework. Other counties have similarly formed community advisory boards or 
subcommittees for their CCP’s and they would also adhere to formal Brown Act proceadures. 

Option 2: Appeal and Maintain Formal Commission Status 

Alternatively, the Council could oppose the elimination recommendation and seek to remain a codified 
commission. This would involve engaging with the remaining steps of the Task Force process and, if 
necessary, the Board of Supervisors. For example, Council members and supporters could submit 
written comments. or provide testimony before the Feb 1, 2026 deadline for Task Force revisions. They 
could also request meetings with the Task Force in an effort to have the recommendation changed.  
While it is likely that this effort would be successful, if it failed, the Council and its supporters could 
engage Board of Supervisors directly to express their opposition prior to introduction of the ordinance or 
a vote.  

Pros: Preserves existing structure and accountability. The Council would retain its ordinance-based 
authority –as established in the Administrative Code--which explicitly “establishes a Reentry Council.” 
It would continue to play a defined role in coordinating reentry efforts across the city. As a formal 
commission, its meetings would continue to be publicly noticed with agendas and comment periods, 
ensuring transparency and community input. Required membership (including designated seats for 
formerly incarcerated persons and department co-chairs) would be preserved, maintaining stakeholders’ 
roles in decision-making and demonstrating the commitment and priorities of the City and County of 
San Francisco. 

Cons: Continued administrative burden and structural issues. Keeping the Council as a formal 
commission means complying with all open-meeting requirements under the Brown Act, such as public 
agendas, minutes, and comment periods.  The Task Force viewed many of these requirements as onerous 
given that most members are city staff. The subcommittees of the Council already struggle with 
community participation due to the fact that meetings take place during the workday and cannot be 
remote. The Council’s size (24 seats) and lack of term limits were already criticized by the Task Force 
as needing reform, indicating that preserving it without changes may not satisfy the Task Force. Even if 
retained, the Council would likely face future restructuring: the Task Force has recommended limiting 
membership and adding term limits to align it with a smaller advisory committee model. Moreover, its 
2029 sunset date would still require reauthorization by the Board, so maintaining the status quo only 
postpones future review. 

 
 

14



Other Passive Meeting Bodies 

Several existing city groups operate as passive meeting bodies (PMBs). For example, the Mayor’s 
Disability Council and the Citywide Affordable Housing Loan Committee are explicitly cited by the 
City Attorney as passive bodies (convened without ordinance). These groups do not appear on the 
official list of codified commissions because they are informal. Another example is the SB 43 Executive 
Steering Committee (created by state law for criminal justice reform): it meets periodically and is listed 
on the city’s passive meeting notices. In practice, that means SB 43 meetings are announced by informal 
notice rather than formal agendas, illustrating how a policy working group can function as a PMB. 

 

We ask Reentry Council Members to review the options prior to the next Reentry Council 
Meeting and attend prepared to vote each option. 

 

 

15



Roster of Members 

Richard Beal (Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
richardb@thclinic.org 

Freda Randolph Glenn 
freda.randolph@sfgov.org 

Destiny Pletsch 
Destiny.Pletsch@usw.salvationarmy.org 

Emmeline Sun 
emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu 

Thompson Tran 
Thompson.Tran@usw.salvationarmy.org 

Joshua Short 
Member of the Reentry Community 
phattchancecommunity.josh@gmail.com 

Jay Sutter 
Member of the Reentry Community 
jsutter@sfgoodwill.org 

Gabe Singer 
gsinger@larkinstreetyouth.org 

Sandra Troncosa 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Stroncoso@sfgoodwill.org 

Mary Vandigriff 
Member of the Reentry Community 
mvandigriff@sfgoodwill.org 

Lakisha Richmond 
Member of the Reentry Community 
lrichmond@sfgoodwill.org 

Mike Paisley 
mike.pasley@bhpmss.org 

Rachel Kinnon 
Rachel.kinnon@sfpl.org 

Victoria Westbrook 
Member of the Reentry Community 
victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 

Steven Rice 
Member of the Reentry Community 
steven@codetenderloin.org 

CheRonn Ford 
Cheronn.ford@sfgov.org 

Joe Cordova 
joseph.cordova@sfgov.org 

For more information, contact  
Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Division 
Director, at victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 
or  
(415) 930-2202 or visit
https://www.sf.gov/departments/direct-
action-subcommittee

16

mailto:richardb@thclinic.org
mailto:freda.randolph@sfgov.org
mailto:Destiny.Pletsch@usw.salvationarmy.org
mailto:emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu
mailto:Thompson.Tran@usw.salvationarmy.org
mailto:jsutter@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:Stroncoso@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:mvandigriff@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:lrichmond@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:Rachel.kinnon@sfpl.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org
mailto:steven@codetenderloin.org
mailto:Cheronn.ford@sfgov.org
mailto:joseph.cordova@sfgov.org


Roster of Members 

Juthaporn Chaloeicheep (Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
chaloeicheepj@gmail.com 

Alisea Wesley-Clark 
Member of the Reentry Community 
aclark@westside-health.org 

Angie Wilson 
Member of the Reentry Community 
angela.wilson@sfgov.org 

Rebecca Jackson 
Member of the Reentry Community 
rebecca.jackson@communityforwardsf.org 

Shannon Wise 
Member of the Reentry Community 
shannonwise2000@yahoo.com 

Yves-Langston Barthaud 
ybarthaud@sfsafehouse.org 

Dakota Rose Austin 
Member of the Reentry Community 
dakotaroseaustin80@gmail.com 

Victoria Westbrook 
Member of the Reentry Community 
victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 

Da’vonna Smith 
davonna.smith@sfgov.org 

Brea Darnell 
brea.darnell@sfgov.org 

For more information, please contact  
Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Division 
Director at victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org or 
(415) 930-2202 or visit
https://www.sf.gov/departments/women-1st-
subcommittee

17

mailto:chaloeicheepj@gmail.com
mailto:aclark@westside-health.org
mailto:angela.wilson@sfgov.org
mailto:rebecca.jackson@communityforwardsf.org
mailto:shannonwise2000@yahoo.com
mailto:ybarthaud@sfsafehouse.org
mailto:dakotaroseaustin80@gmail.com
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org
mailto:davonna.smith@sfgov.org
mailto:brea.darnell@sfgov.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org


Roster of Members 
Bobby Jones-Hanley (Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
bobby.jones@croporg.org 

Tara Agnese 
tara.agnese@sfgov.org 

Melanie Kushnir 
MKushnir@sftc.org 

Linda Connelly 
lconnelly@successfulreentry.com 

Melanie Kim 
melanie.kim@sfgov.org 

Carolyn Goosen 
carolyn.goossen@sfgov.org 

Danielle McVay 
danielle.McVay@gmail.com 

Indiana Barrenechea 
indiana.barrenechea@ifrsf.org 

Jay Fraser 
jay.fraser@sfgov.org 

Joe Calderon 
Member of the Reentry Community 
josephcalderon@urban-alchemy.us 

Alek Hartwick  
alek.hartwick@sfgov.org 

Kristin Scott-Calip  
kristin.scott-calip@sfgov.org 

Ranon Ross 
ranon.ross@sfgov.org 

Katrina Baptiste 
katrina.baptiste@sfgov.org 

Victoria Westbrook 
Member of the Reentry Community 
victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 

CheRonn Ford 
Cheronn.ford@sfgov.org 

Joe Cordova 
joseph.cordova@sfgov.org 

For more information, please contact  
Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Division Director 
@victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org or  
(415) 930-2202 or visit
https://www.sf.gov/departments/legislation-
policy-practices-subcommittee.

18

mailto:bobby.jones@croporg.org
mailto:tara.agnese@sfgov.org
mailto:MKushnir@sftc.org
mailto:lconnelly@successfulreentry.com
mailto:melanie.kim@sfgov.org
mailto:carolyn.goossen@sfgov.org
mailto:danielle.McVay@gmail.com
mailto:indiana.barrenechea@ifrsf.org
mailto:jay.fraser@sfgov.org
mailto:josephcalderon@urban-alchemy.us
mailto:alek.hartwick@sfgov.org
mailto:kristin.scott-calip@sfgov.org
mailto:ranon.ross@sfgov.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org
mailto:Cheronn.ford@sfgov.org
mailto:joseph.cordova@sfgov.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org


Roster of Members 

Co-Chairs 

Cristel Tullock 
Chief Adult Probation Officer 
Adult Probation Department  
City & County of San Francisco  
945 Bryant Street, 3rd floor  
San Francisco, CA 94103  
Cristel.tullock@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Assistant Chief Jeremy Valverde 
jeremy.valverde@sfgov.org  
Alternate: Alea Brown-Hoffmeister 
alea.brown@sfgov.org  

Brooke Jenkins 
District Attorney 
Office of the District Attorney 
City & County of San Francisco 
350 Rhode Island Street 
North Building, Suite 400N 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
districtattorney@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Monifa Willis 
monifa.willis@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Tara Agnese 
tara.agnese@sfgov.org 

Paul Miyamoto 
Sheriff 
Sheriff’s Office 
City & County of San Francisco 
City Hall, Room 456 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
sheriff@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Alissa Riker  
alissa.riker@sfgov.org  

Manohar Raju 
Public Defender 
Office of the Public Defender 
City & County of San Francisco 
555 7th Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
manohar.raju@sfgov.org 
(415) 553-1677
Executive Assistant: Judy Liu
judy.liu@sfgov.org
(415) 553-1677
Alternate: Carolyn Goosen
Carolyn.Goossen@sfgov.org

Honorable Daniel Lure 
Mayor of San Francisco 
City & County of San Francisco 
City Hall, Room 200 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
Alternate: Steven Betz 
steven.betz.myr@sfgov.org  

Billey Hoang Le 
Board Appointee (Seat 1) 
ble@sfsu.edu 

Anthony Partee 
Board Appointee (Seat 2) 
anthonypartee@barca-elinc.in 

Joanna Pulido 
Board Appointee (Seat 3) 
joannapulido@ramsinc.org 

Lorenzo Juan Castaneda 
Board Appointee (Seat 4) 
thewhoprogramsf@gmail.com 

19

mailto:Cristel.tullock@sfgov.org
mailto:jeremy.valverde@sfgov.org
mailto:alea.brown@sfgov.org
mailto:districtattorney@sfgov.org
mailto:monifa.willis@sfgov.org
mailto:tara.agnese@sfgov.org
mailto:sheriff@sfgov.org
mailto:alissa.riker@sfgov.org
mailto:manohar.raju@sfgov.org
mailto:judy.liu@sfgov.org
mailto:Carolyn.Goossen@sfgov.org
mailto:steven.betz.myr@sfgov.org
mailto:ble@sfsu.edu
mailto:anthonypartee@barca-elinc.in
mailto:joannapulido@ramsinc.org
mailto:thewhoprogramsf@gmail.com


Other Members 

Matt Dorsey  
Supervisor, District 6  
Board of Supervisors City Hall 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 
San Francisco, Ca 94102-4689  
matt.dorsey@sfgov.org  
Alternate: Dominica Donovan 
dominica.donovan@sfgov.org  
Alternate: Bryan Dahl 
bryan.dahl@sfgov.org 

Tatiana Lewis 
Mayoral Appointee 
tatiana@prisonerswithchildren.org 

Melanie Kushner 
Court Administrator 
Superior Court of California, County 
of San Francisco 

   mkushnir@sftc.org  
Alternate:kking@sftc.org 

William Scott 
Chief 
Police Department 
City & County of San Francisco 1245 
Third St. 
San Francisco, CA 94158 
William.scott@sfgov.org  
Executive Assistant: Rowena Carr 
Rowena.Carr@sfgov.org 
(415) 837-7000
Alternate: Cmdr. Peter Walsh
peter.walsh@sfgov.org

David Mauroff 
Representing San Francisco Pretrial 
Diversion Project 
Board Appointee (Seat 6) 
davidm@sfpretrial.org 

Marion Sanders 
Deputy Director for Planning, Performance 
& Strategy 
Department of Homelessness & Supportive 
Housing 
marion.sanders@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Aaqilah Islam 
aaqilah.islam@sfgov.org  

Katy Miller 
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer  
Juvenile Probation Department  
City & County of San Francisco  
375 Woodside Avenue, Room 243  
San Francisco, CA 94127  
Executive Secretary: Sheryl Cowan 
Sheryl.cowan@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Gabriel Calvillo 
gabe.calvillo@sfgov.org  

Steve Adami 
Mayoral Appointee 
steve.adami@usw.salvationarmy.org 

Dr. Reginold Daniels 
Mayoral Appointee 
drreggiepdaniels@gmail.com 

Iowayna Pena 
Workforce Director 
Office of Economic and  
Workforce Development 
City & County of San Francisco 
iowayna.pena@sfgov.org  
Alternate: Ken Nim 
ken.nim@sfgov.org 

20

mailto:matt.dorsey@sfgov.org
mailto:dominica.donovan@sfgov.org
mailto:bryan.dahl@sfgov.org
mailto:tatiana@prisonerswithchildren.org
mailto:mkushnir@sftc.org
mailto:kking@sftc.org
mailto:William.scott@sfgov.org
mailto:Rowena.Carr@sfgov.org
mailto:peter.walsh@sfgov.org
mailto:davidm@sfpretrial.org
mailto:marion.sanders@sfgov.org
mailto:aaqilah.islam@sfgov.org
mailto:Sheryl.cowan@sfgov.org
mailto:gabe.calvillo@sfgov.org
mailto:steve.adami@usw.salvationarmy.org
mailto:drreggiepdaniels@gmail.com
mailto:iowayna.pena@sfgov.org
mailto:ken.nim@sfgov.org


Chris Carrubba-Katz 
Chief U.S. Probation Officer 
Northern District of California 
U.S. Probation Office, U.S. District 
Court 450 Golden Gate Avenue 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
chris_carrubba-
katz@canp.uscourts.gov 
Alternate: Jennifer James 
Assistant Deputy Chief 
jennifer_james@canp.uscourts.gov 

Daniel Tsai 
Director 
Department of Public Health 
City & County of San Francisco 
1380 Howard Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103  
Alternate: Thersea Ick 
theresa.ick@sfdph.org  
Alternate: Angelica Almeida 
angelica.almeida@sfdph.org 
Alternate: Robin Candler 
robin.candler@sfgov.org 

Karen Roye 
Director 
Department of Child Support Services 
City & County of San Francisco 
617 Mission Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
karen.roye@sfgov.org 
Executive Assistant: Serene Chu 
serene.chu@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Freda Randolph Glenn 
freda.randolph@sfgov.org 

Trent Rhorer  
Executive Director  
Human Services Agency 
City & County of San Francisco 
170 Otis Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
trent.rhorer@sfgov.org  
Alternate: Susie Smith 
susie.smith@sfgov.org 
Alternate: David McCahon 
david.mccahon@sfgov.org  

Sherrice Dorsey-Smith 
Interim Director 
Department of Children, Youth & Their 
Families 
City & County of San Francisco  
1390 Market Street, Suite 900  
San Francisco, CA 94102  
sherrice.dorsey@dcyf.org  
Alternate: Deedra Jackson 
deedra.jackson@dcyf.org  
Alternate: Jasmine Dawson 
jasmine.dawson@dcyf.org  

Phillip Rodriguez  
Parole Administrator 
Division of Parole Operations 
California Department of Corrections & 
Rehabilitation 
1727 Mission St. 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
Phillip.Rodriguez@cdcr.ca.gov 
Alternate: Maribel Hinojosa 
Maribel.Hinojosa@cdcr.ca.gov 

21

mailto:chris_carrubba-katz@canp.uscourts.gov
mailto:chris_carrubba-katz@canp.uscourts.gov
mailto:jennifer_james@canp.uscourts.gov
mailto:theresa.ick@sfdph.org
mailto:angelica.almeida@sfdph.org
mailto:robin.candler@sfgov.org
mailto:karen.roye@sfgov.org
mailto:serene.chu@sfgov.org
mailto:freda.randolph@sfgov.org
mailto:trent.rhorer@sfgov.org
mailto:james.whelly@sfgov.org
mailto:david.mccahon@sfgov.org
mailto:sherrice.dorsey@dcyf.org
mailto:deedra.jackson@dcyf.org
mailto:jasmine.dawson@dcyf.org
mailto:Phillip.Rodriguez@cdcr.ca.gov
mailto:Maribel.Hinojosa@cdcr.ca.gov


Staff 
Victoria Westbrook 
Reentry Division Director 
Adult Probation Department 
Community Assessment & Services 
Center 564 6th Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 
(415) 930-2200

Alek Hartwick 
Legislative Affairs Manager 
Adult Probation Department 
alek.hartwick@sfgov.org  

For more information about the 
Reentry Council of the City and 
Council of San Francisco, please 
visit www.sfgov.org/reentry

22

mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org
mailto:alek.hartwick@sfgov.org
http://www.sfgov.org/reentry

	Reentry Council_Public Packet_11.12.2025.pdf
	1. RC Agenda 11.12.2025.pdf
	Thursday, July 17, 2025


	1. RC Agenda 7.17.2025.pdf
	Reentry Council_Public Packet_11.12.2025
	DRAFT Minutes - 7.17.2025.pdf
	Thursday, July 17, 2025

	Resolution on the Murder of an Urban Alchemy Employee and the Need for Enhanced Support, Safety, and Pay Equity for Frontline Workers v2.pdf
	Reentry Council - Commission Streamlining Task Force Recommendations.pdf
	A9tjk72i_pf3r44_1nk.tmp
	Roster 1 FULL-COUNCIL- 10.12.2025.pdf
	Brooke Jenkins
	District Attorney

	Manohar Raju
	Public Defender

	Honorable Daniel Lure
	Mayor of San Francisco

	Billey Hoang Le
	Board Appointee (Seat 1)

	Anthony Partee
	Board Appointee (Seat 2)

	Joanna Pulido
	Board Appointee (Seat 3)

	Tatiana Lewis
	Mayoral Appointee

	Melanie Kushner
	Court Administrator

	William Scott
	Chief

	David Mauroff
	Representing San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project

	Marion Sanders
	Deputy Director for Planning, Performance & Strategy

	Katy Miller
	Steve Adami
	Mayoral Appointee

	Dr. Reginold Daniels
	Mayoral Appointee

	Chris Carrubba-Katz
	Chief U.S. Probation Officer

	Karen Roye
	Director
	Phillip Rodriguez
	Parole Administrator

	Victoria Westbrook





